
Capital Public Radio
Board of Directors Meeting

We acknowledge, with respect, the land our campus is on today was, and continues to be, the homelands of the
Indigenous people of this area. Northern California and its rivers serve as a gathering place for many local tribes from the
surrounding valley and foothills including the Southern Maidu, Patwin, Wintun, Wiyot, and Mechoopda. We recognize

these lands and riverways as unceded traditional territories of these Native peoples. We further recognize these
California Native nations and respect their sovereignty. By offering this land acknowledgement, we affirm a commitment
to build relationships and foster a university environment of success to better serve Native nations and communities.

No.

Agenda for Wednesday, August 21st, 2024 at 5:30pm
Zoom Meeting Access Link: https://csus.zoom.us/j/83340347271

Presenter

A
c
t
i
o
n

I. Opening Catron

This meeting was called to order and the land acknowledgement was provided by Susan
Catron at 5:32.

Members

Mark Wheeler – Left at 5:54

Susan Catron

Martin Clevenger

Stacey Hunter Schwartz

Frank Maranzino

Leslie Cornick

Kenneth Johnston

Mashariki Lawson-Cook

Jim Richardson

Rob Crawford

Lynn Belzer

Jeff Holden

Nick Llanos

Jim Bolt

Steve Karp

Absent

Annie Lam

Nataly Andrade-Dominguez

Erike Young

Staff

Chris Bruno

Tabitha Leeds

Bruce Scheidt

Ashley Morrison

X

https://csus.zoom.us/j/83340347271


Cindy Mortensen

a) Approval of Agenda (or add items for discussion only)
There was a last-minute action item added to the agenda on 8/20/2024. It was posted
publicly and related to an urgent personnel matter. This item was added to closed
session and will require a vote.

Mark Wheeler moved to approve the agenda as amended and was seconded by Stacey
Hunter Schwartz. This passed unanimously.

II. Open Forum Catron

During open forum, each community member in attendance may address the Board for up to three minutes. Time guidelines ensure
that all participants will have an opportunity to speak, as well as allow for the Board to resume their business in a timely fashion. A
director or manager may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed, but no actions or determinations can be made on
items brought up during open forum. If desired, the Board may look to add an item raised during open forum to a future Board

meeting agenda in which an action or determination can be made. We ask that all speakers be respectful and observe general rules
of decorum by not engaging in any argumentative or disruptive behavior. And we thank all participants in advance for bringing
organizational matters, questions, or concerns to the Board and management. Please understand that once the Board begins

deliberations, there will be no further opportunity for public comment unless expressly invited by the Board.

a) Public Comment
The board received a letter from Red Slider, which has been provided to the members
and will be included in the board meeting minutes. Red Slider is requesting options for
two-way dialogue between community members and the CapRadio Team.

In the spirit of transparency, Susan stated that the Board will look into the current
options for community engagement and will determine if they are adequate.

Kai Hahn, Sac State Alumni – Kai requested that CapRadio report on case # 99F08735,
which relates to his father’s death in an unsolved hit and run. He provided a packet to
the members detailing the case and asked that it be included to the Board minutes.

Kai was informed of the newsroom firewall between the Board and the reporting staff.
The Board cannot direct staff members to report on any items. Kai was referred to the
CapRadio Newsroom email.

Mike Montgomery, former CapRadio Employee – Mike informed the Board that the trial
for former Program Director Charles Starzynski’s murder will be starting in a few days.
Mike is requesting that CapRadio covers this trial to honor this individual.

Frank Maranzino stated that CapRadio covered this story when the murder originally
occurred and expected that the Team will continue this coverage through the trial.

Bob Rosenberg, former Board member – Bob stated that he was glad to see the
University’s and President Wood’s efforts in supporting the station. He complimented
the move to take on Chico and Humboldt, and Frank’s work in managing the CapRadio
infrastructure up. CapRadio is blessed with a strong base of people who care. Bob stated
that he was all for KVIE but they run a TV station and this is a radio station.

b) Open Forum for Board Members
None provided



III. Approval of Minutes Catron

a) Minutes will be provided at the next session.

IV. Staff Reports Catron

a) General Manager’s Report
CapRadio has officially signed an agreement with the CA Intern Network. Timing for
interns to be onsite is still up in the air but steady progress is occurring. Management
does expect to have interns working at CapRadio in various capacities throughout the
Fall semester.

Staff members met with the SacState student radio station KSSU to develop a master
class on radio broadcasting.

There have been a number of recent hirings that have caused a 20% expansion in the
Newsroom. Keyshawn Davis was brought on as CapRadio’s new Communities Reporter.
A temporary hire was added to help cover Insight for the next 3 months as Vicki
Gonzalez continues to recover. The Wildfire Reporter position, which we had been
struggling to fill, was accepted by an internal hire, Ava Norgrove.

Collective bargaining continues and seems to be going well.

In fall, SacState will be working with CapRadio to hold a learning lab at 1010 8th Street.
The goal is to utilize this space for students to learn how to hold events, manage
equipment, and provide client-focused hospitality. The first event is currently scheduled
for early November.

b) Chief Marketing and Revenue Officer’s Report
After the forensic exam release, CapRadio held five donor convenings over two weeks
(around 15 people per convening) with key staff including Frank Maranzino, Chris Bruno
and Jennifer Halm. The meetings went very well, and the general sentiment was that
donors had more confidence than ever in CapRadio’s new management and the future
of the station.

Management is entering Phase II of the communications plan after the forensic
examination, which will focus on amplifying CapRadio’s turnaround story. Chris
prepared a reference document for board members to effectively tell the story of the
new CapRadio and dispel misinformation.

CapRadio’s fall fundraising campaign starts on Aug. 28. It’s typically the largest
fundraiser of the year, and will include a significant matching funds gift to inspire the
community to support the future of CapRadio.

Martin Clevenger inquired about social media engagement and how it’s managed on
the CapRadio side i.e., are staff responding to comments on social media? Chris
informed him that staff does not respond to comments on social media, but instead
take the larger reoccurring points and respond to those on the CapRadio.org/facts
landing page.

Martin seeded time to Bob Rosenberg – In regards to outreach, the lease for the KXPR
Eagles Nest Tower allows CapRadio to hold outings for donors at that facility. The station
should consider it as an option for hosting future outreach events.

Maranzino

Bruno



V. Committee Reports Catron

a) Executive
Susan reported that the Executive Team will be meeting tonight to discuss previously
deferred topics. In their last session, all agenda items were deferred as there was a need
to focus on the forensic exam. As such, there are no updates to share at this time.

b) Finance
Martin reported that the committee continues to grow, with incredibly experienced
individuals contributing their skills and efforts. The Committee’s focus has been on the
current financial statements for June 30, 2024. They also discussed the Elverta property
resolution, which will be voted on this evening by the Board as a whole.

Marty provided a brief update to the ‘22 & ‘23 audits, both of which will likely be
released around the same time. The Committee is determining what financial
information should be reported to the Board on a regular basis and what format they
should be presented in. A schedule for the Finance Committee is in the works but hasn’t
been finalized as of this session.

c) Governance
Stacey reported that the Governance Committee continues their work on the Bylaws
and hopes to have a draft out to President Wood and Bruce Scheidt for legal review by
the end of the week. There was some additional input that would be required by the
Executive Committee that Stacey will be inquiring about at tonight’s session.

d) Audit
Leslie reported that in the last Audit Committee session, Tabitha provided updates on
the progress of the multiple ongoing audits. The Committee approved a charter that will
be presented to the Board at some point. A process for charter approval is still needed
however the committee will work with the Governance Team to determine the best way
forward.

Jim R. wanted to clarify that committees don’t approve things, they provide
recommendations to the Board on topics.

e) Development
Kenneth stated that there were no updates to make at this time. The Development
Team had some scheduling issues but will be meeting Sept 4th to continue their work.

Catron

Clevenger

Hunter Schwartz

Cornick

Johnston

VI. Adjournment to Closed Session Catron X

Kenneth moved to go into closed session and was seconded by Lynn. This passed
unanimously and the board moved into closed session at 6:10pm.

Closed Session Items
a) Litigation
b) Litigation
c) Property Matters – Action Required
d) Property Matters
e) Property Matters
f) Personnel

Lawson-Cook
Scheidt

Clevenger
Scheidt
Scheidt

Clevenger

VII. Reconvene to Open Session Catron X



Announcement of Closed Session Actions Taken

Stacey reported that during closed session, the Board took action on a resolution
related to the Elverta Tower. This resolution (see attached) will instruct CapRadio’s CFO
to deposit any current and future rental funds received from the tower to pay for
operations and maintenance. This resolution was approved by all members present with
one abstention.

Kenneth moved to adjourn session and was seconded by Nick. This passed unanimously.
The Board adjourned at 7:40pm

Hunter Schwartz

VIII. Adjournment Catron X

Approved by Stacey Hunter Schwartz
09/05/2024

https://na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAtIck66-maMIo9-dPaRaL2Eq-dc1kPxmI



















	8-21-2024 Board of Directors Minutes
	Red Slider Letter - Minutes
	Kai On Letter - Minutes

		2024-09-05T09:56:10-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign




